# CONSTITUTION OF THE UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG DENTAL ALUMNI ASSOCIATION

#### Name and Address

- 1. (a) The name of the association is "The University of Hong Kong Dental Alumni Association".
  - (b) The name of the association in Chinese is 香港大學牙科畢業同學會.
- 2. The registered address of the association is Faculty Office, Faculty of Dentistry, University of Hong Kong, Prince Philip Dental Hospital, 6/F, 34 Hospital Road, Hong Kong.

#### **Definitions**

- 3. In this constitution,
  - "Association" means the University of Hong Kong Dental Alumni Association.
  - "Council" means the Council of the Association.
  - "Dental Graduates" or "Graduates" means the dental graduates from the University of Hong Kong.
  - "Faculty" means the Faculty of Dentistry, University of Hong Kong.
  - "General Meeting" means Annual General Meetings or Extra-ordinary General Meetings as may be specified.
  - "Members" means all members of the association unless otherwise specified.

# **Objects**

- 4. The objects of the Association are as follows:
  - (a) To promote the interest of the dental graduates.
  - (b) To promote the professional qualities of the dental graduates.
  - (c) To maintain and promote the relationship between the Faculty of Dentistry and the dental graduates.

# **Memberships**

- 5. The association shall consist of full and associate members.
- 6. Any person who is a holder of the Bachelor of Dental Surgery degree of the University of Hong Kong, and only such person, shall be eligible to become a full member.
- 7. Associate memberships
  - (a) All teachers, tutors and instructors of the B.D.S. syllabuses, members of the Faculty Board, dental practitioners working in the Prince Philip Dental Hospital shall be associate members on payment of the prescribed fees.
  - (b) Any other person who shall pay the prescribed fee on application to and subject to approval by the Council shall be an associate member.

# **Annual subscription**

8. All members of the Association shall pay an annual subscription. The amount payable shall be such as the Association in General Meetings shall determine from time to time.

# Rights and privileges of members

- 9. Full members shall be entitled to the following rights and privileges: -
  - (a) to propose or vote for the election of members to the Council;
  - (b) to stand for election as members of the Council;
  - (c) to enjoy the full facilities of the Association.
- 10. Associate members shall be entitled to all benefits enjoyed by full members except that they shall not be a member of the Council, or propose or second resolutions, or vote at meetings of the Association.

#### Council

- 11. The Council shall consist of the President, the Vice-President, the Honorary Secretary, the Honorary Treasurer, the Publication Secretary, the Social Secretary, the Immediate past President and 5 other Council Members.
- 12. The Council session shall begin with the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting and shall terminate with the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the following year.
- 13. All members of the Council shall be elected at the General Meeting of every term.
  - (a) Nomination for the Council Members for the next Council Session shall be opened one month before the Annual General Meeting and the nomination shall be closed at 12 noon of the day two weeks before the Annual General Meeting.
  - (b) Nomination for election shall be only made on forms provided for the purpose. Each form shall contain the name of one candidate, together with signatures of a proposer and seconder and signature of the candidate signifying his consent.
  - (c) The name of the candidate shall be announced within 48 hours after the closing of nomination; thereafter the candidate may start his election campaign.
  - (d) Election shall be by secret ballot at the Annual General Meeting.
  - (e) When there is only one candidate for the post, the candidate shall be declared elected only when he has secured a number of votes no less than 10% of the total fully paid-up membership of the Association.
  - (f) Where there are two or more than two candidates for one post, electors shall indicate on their ballot papers their order of preference for the candidates. Papers shall be arranged and counted according to first preferences. The candidate at the bottom of the Poll on this first count shall be declared to have lost and his votes shall be distributed among the remaining candidate or candidates according to the second preference or preferences indicated on the ballot papers. This process shall be continued until one candidate is left and he shall be

- declared elected provided he has secured at the end of the process a number of votes no less than 10% of the total fully paid-up membership of the Association.
- (g) In the event of a tie occurring at any stage of the election proceeding for a post, the Council shall order a re-election for that particular post within 7 days.
- (h) A list of the new office bearers shall be submitted to the Registrar of Societies for information.

# **General Meetings**

- 14. The Annual General Meeting shall be held in every calendar year at such time (not being more than 15 months after the holding of the last preceding General Meeting) and place as may be determined by the Council.
- 15. Notice of the Annual General Meeting or the Extra-ordinary General Meeting shall be given to members at least 7 days before the meeting.
- 16. Not less than 10% of total fully paid-up members shall form a quorum at the Annual General Meeting or the Extra-ordinary General Meeting.

# Use of funds

17. Funds of the Association shall be applied solely to meet its recurrent expenditure and for the enterprises stipulated in the item 4 'Object' of this constitution and shall not be used for any other purposes.

#### **Amendment of the Constitution**

- 18. The Constitution of the Association shall only be amended at an Annual General Meeting or an Extra-ordinary General Meeting.
- 19. All amendments to the Constitution of the Association shall be subject to the approval of the Registrar of Societies.

# **Debts and Liabilities**

20. Any debts of the Association shall be borne by all the Council Members of the term in which the debts are incurred.

# **Dissolution**

- 21. The Association shall be dissolved at a General Meeting of the Association held for that particular purpose. A resolution to that effect shall be passed by at least three- quarters of the full members of the Association who are present.
- 22. Any surplus fund at the date of dissolution shall be given to local charities as authorized at the General Meeting approving the said dissolution.